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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Swelect HHV Solar
Photovoltaics Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS”)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“"ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

« Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income , cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policiés used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other matters

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024, were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements
on 23 May 2024.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditors’ report in in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during
the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 36 (b) to the financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
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vi.

foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“"Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and
has not proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for
the financial year ended 31 March 2025 which have the feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of the audit trail feature being tampered with, and the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
"Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Rekha Bai

Partner

Membership No. 214161

(UDIN: 25214161 BMIQMA6858)

Place: Chennai
Date: 30 May 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited (the “Company”) as at
31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Managements and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on, the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the criteria
for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by the
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

ERLUMI?;L

Rekha Bai

Partner

Membership No. 214161

(UDIN: 25214161BMIQMAG6858)

Place: Chennai
Date: 30 May 2025



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells LLP

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use
assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and right-of-use
assets were physically verified during the year by the management which, in
our opinion, provides for physical verification at reasonable intervals. According
to the information given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) Based on our examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report
that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financiali statements
included in property, plant & equipment are held the name of the Company as
at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
(including right of use of assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals except for Goods-in-transit and stocks held with third
parties which have not been verified during the year or at the end of the year.
In our opinion and based on the information and explanations given to us, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. For
stocks held with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been
obtained, the goods have been received subsequent to the year end. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories
were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with
books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate,
at points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or statements
comprising stock statements, book debt statements, and other stipulated
financial information filed by the Company with such banks or financial




Deloitte

Haskins & SellsLLP

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

institutions are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the
Company of the respective quarters and no material discrepancies have been
observed.

The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee or security and
granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and
hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The investments made, during the year are, in our opinion, not prejudicial to
the Company’s interest. There was no guarantees provided, Security given by
the Company during the year.

(c) The Company has not provided any security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature. of loans (secured or unsecured), to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year to any other entity
during the year, (secured or unsecured), to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(c),(d),(e)
and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to the generation and
supply of electricity. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained
by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the
Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) (i) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,

Employees’ State Insurance (ESI), Income-tax, Sales Tax, duty of Custom, cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally
been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities though there has
been a delay in respect of remittance of Employees’ State Insurance and
Provident Fund dues.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance (ESI), Income-tax, Sales Tax, duty
of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
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(b) Details of dues of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have
not been deposited as on 31 March 2025 on account of disputes are given below:

Amount Period to which | Forum where
sNtaaTu‘:::f the ::::re of (in Rs. the amount dispute is
] lakhs) relates pending
. Assessment Unit,
Income Taxes E;si?(lelr(:]v;/ances 13,704.94 Gy 202e=202% Income Tax
' Department.

(viii)) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix) (@) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b)The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for
which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during
the year and hence reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during
the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has made private placement of shares by way of
conversion of the existing outstanding loan availed by the Company into
redeemable, non-convertible, non-cumulative preference shares during the year.
For such allotment of shares, the Company has complied with the requirements of
Sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, and as there are no funds raised
on account of the said conversion, hence reporting on utilisation of funds raised
during the year is not applicable. The Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of (fully, partly, or optionally) convertible debentures
during the year.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year.
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act
for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The Company is a private company and hence the provisions
of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(@) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during
the year and covering the period upto 30 September 2024 and the draft of the
internal audit reports were issued after the balance sheet date covering the
period 1 October 2024 to 31 March 2025 for the period under audit.

In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or directors of it's holding company, subsidiary
companies or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 Hence, reporting under clause (xvi) (a), (b) and
(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Group does not have any Core Investment Company as part of the group
and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the' statutory auditors of the Company during the
year and based on the information and explanations given to us by the Management
and the response received by us pursuant to our communication with the outgoing
Auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing
auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowiedge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or
turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore
or more during the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provision of
Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(xxi) The Company does not prepare consolidated financial statements and hence
reporting under Clause (xxi) is not applicable.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

FLerre Nk

Rekha Bai

Partner

(Membership No. 214161)
(UDIN: 25214161BMIQMA6858)

Place: Chennai
Date: 30 May 2025
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

In terms of our report attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Lo o

Partner
Membership No : 214161

Place: Chennai
Date: 30 May 2025

See accompanying notes forming part of Financial Statements

Particulars Notes As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 9,985.57 10,443.06
(b) Right-of-use assets 4(a)(i) 103.28 ’ 126.61
(c) Capital work in progress 4(ii) 14.44 28.36
(d) Other intangible assets 5 62.93 3.27
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 60.23 18.10
(ii) Other financial assets 7 821.67 23.57
(f) Income Tax Asset (Net) 20(c) 32.12 27.73
(g) Other non-current assets 8 76.63 151.60
(h) Deferred Tax asset (Net) 20 15.63 -
Total Non-current assets 11,172.50 10,822.30
Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 11,769.18 7,100.47
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Loans 7(i) 1.96 0.09
(ii) Trade receivables 10 1,642.37 194.68
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 156.73 51.70
(iv) Other financial assets 7 978.73 1,688.71
(c) Other Current assets 12 1,336.61 1,054.20
Total Current assets 15,885.58 10,089.85
Total Assets 27,058.08 20,912.15
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(2) Equity share capital 13 1.00 1.00
(b) Other Equity 14 (156.68) (738.16)
Total Equity {155.68) (737.16)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 6,574.70 8,857.49
(ii) Lease liabilities 4(a)(ii) 107.89 121.42
(b) Provisions 18 53.70 35.36
Total Non-Current liabilities 6,736.29 9,014.27
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 6,135.39 3,219.48
(ii) Lease liabilities 4(a)(ii) 1.24 10.60
(iii) Trade payables 16
(A) Total outstand_ing dues of micro enterprises 147.35 36.69
and small enterprises
(B.) Total outsFanding dues of creditc_)rs other than 11,391.75 8,497.27
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 17 41.24 467.21
(b) Other current liabilities 19 2,760.50 403.79
Total Current Liabilities 20,477.47 12,635.04
Total Liabilities 27,213.76 21,649.31
Total Equity and Liabilities 27,058.08 20,912,
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Director
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Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
CIN:U40100TN2021PTC143219

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
I Income
Revenue from operations 21 30,977.85 19,266.50
Other Income 22 204.08 99.55
Total income 31,181.93 19,366.05
I1 Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 23 23,765.69 19,720.37
Purchase of stock in trade 23A 238.51 -
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories of work-in-progress, traded 24 1,275.12 (3,912.82)
goods and finished goods
Employee benefits expense 25 398.19 310.26
Finance costs 26 1,178.31 1,162.99
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 952.83 1,281.63
Other expenses 28 2,804.93 1,349.34
Total expenses 30,613.58 19,911.77
III Profit/(Loss) before tax (I-II) 568.35 (545.72)
IV Tax Expense
Current tax = =
Deferred Tax 20 (15.63) -
MAT credit (entitlement) - -
Income tax expense (15.63) =
V Profit/(Loss) for the year (III-IV) 583.98 (545.72)
VI Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 30 (2.50) (2.13)
Tax on remeasurement benefits - =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (2.50) (2.13)
VII Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (V+VI) 581.48 (547.85)
Earnings per share (Face Value of Rs. 10/- each)
1. Basic and Diluted (in INR) 29 5,839.76 (5,457.20)

See accompanying notes forming part of Financial Statements
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Chartered Accountants
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Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
CIN:U40100TN2021PTC143219

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 568.35 (545.72)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 952.83 1,281.63

Finance costs 1,178.31 1,162.99

Interest Income (109.92) (98.97)
Provision for warranties 24.72 17.48

Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss 117.91 34.41

Operating profit before working capital / other changes 2,732.20 1,851.82

Movement in working capital / Others :

(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (1,447.69) (178.70)
(Increase) /Decrease in current and non-current assets (1,069.41) 117.11

(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (4,668.71) (1,330.58)
Increase in trade payables, other current and long term liabilities 4,805.68 1,729.41

Increase in provisions (8.88) 11.14

Cash flow generated from operations 343.19 2,200.20

Taxes paid (Net) (4.39) (22.99)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 338.80 2,177.21

B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Interest Income 109.92 98.97

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (517.75) (1,183.46)
Investment in equity shares (42.13) (18.10)
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity more than 3 771.98 (302.09)
months)(Net)

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) 322.02 {1,404.68)
C. Cash flow from financing activities:

Repayment of Non-Current Borrowings (2,282.79) (1,786.39)
Payment of lease liabilities (10.60) (10.60)
Interest paid (1,178.31) (1,162.99)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (3,471.70) (2,959.98)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (2,810.88) (2,187.45)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (2,062.49) 124.96

Closing cash and cash equivalents (4,873.37) (2,062.49)
Cash and Cash equivalents (Refer Note 11(a)) (4,873.37) (2,062.49)

See accompanying notes forming part of Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018
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Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited

CIN:U40100TN2021PTC143219

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at |[Changes in Equity Balance as at |Changes in Equity |Balance as at 31
1 April 2023 Share Capital during 31 March 2024 [Share Capital March 2025
the year during the year
1.00 - 1.00 - 1.00

b. Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus ER:::::Z: Total Other Equity

Balance as at 1 April 2023 (190.31) (190.31)
Loss for the period (545.72) (545.72)
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) (2.13) (2.13)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (738.16) (738.16)
Profit for the period 583.98 583.98 |
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) (2.50) (2.50)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (156.68) (156.68)

See accompanying notes forming part of Financial Statements
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Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the Period ended 31 March 2025

1

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

3(a) Summary of material accounting policies:

Corporate information:

Swelect HHV Photovoltaics Private Limited ('SHPV or the Company’) was incorporated in India as a Private Limited Company under the Companies Act, 2013 on May 03,
2021, The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture of the solar modules. The registered office of the Company is No.5 SWELECT House, Sir PS Sivasamy Salai,
Mylapore, Chennai- 600004.

Adoption of new and revised Ind AS
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standards or amendment to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 - Leases, relating to sale and
leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements based on its evaluation has determined that it
does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Basis of preparation:
Stat of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (2), which is the Company’s functional currency. All the financial information have been presented in Indian
Rupees lakhs except for share data and as otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, the Management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2025 is included In
the following notes:

Note 4 - Useful life of Property,Plant and Equipment

Note 34 - Fair valuation of Financial Assets/Liabilities

Note 9 - Allowance for Non- moving, Slow moving inventories

Note 18 - Provision for Warranty and the underlying projections / assumptions / judgements etc.
Note 30 - Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligations: Key actuarial assumptions

M of fair
A number of Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has
an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values whereby the valuation is obtained from an external independent valuer, which is then
reviewed by the Chieffinancial Officer for the underlying assumptions used in the valuation.

The Chief Financial Officer regularly reviews the significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing
services, Is used by the valuer to measure fair values, then the Chief Financial Officer assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that
these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices Included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset
or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as
the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
Note 32 - Financial Instruments

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification which is determined based on the operating cycle.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
» Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle.
¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A llability is current when:
e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months
as its operating cycle,




b.

|Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the Period ended 31 March 2025

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary
obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
le of

Revenue from sale of goods, its accessories and other traded/manufactured goods are recognised when control of ownership is passed to the buyer, which generally coincides|
with dispatch of goods. Revenues under composite contracts comprising supply, installation and commissioning are recognised on dispatch as such services are generally
considered insignificant to the contract.

Sales Tax/Value Added Tax (VAT), Goods and Service Tax is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by
the seller on behalf of the Government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Interest income
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. Interest income is included in 'Other Income' in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded
using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

ivi
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right as a shareholder/unit holder to receive payment is established by the reporting date.

Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows:

Lower of cost and net realisable vatue.

However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost, If the
Raw materials, stores and spares finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on a
weighted average basis.

Work-in-progress, Finished aood Lower of cost and net realisable value,
progress, €d1000dS Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Traded goods Lower of cost and net realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and costs to make the sale.

Taxes
Current income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year and is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax cradits
and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and written off to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax tates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside Statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

In the situations where the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions|
where it operates, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the Company's|
gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is
recognized in the year in which the timing differences originate.

Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plan

Provijden n
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund,
The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to
the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess Is|
recognised as an asset to the extent of the pre-payment.

Emplovee State Insurance

Contributions to Employees State Insurance Scheme are recognised as expense in the year in which the services are rendered.




Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the Period ended 31 March 2025

Gratuity

The Company makes annual contribution te a Gratuity Fund administered by trustees and managed by LIC. The Company accounts its liability for future gratuity benefits
based on actuarial valuation, as at the Balance Sheet date, determined every year using the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately recognised
In Retained Earnings through Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not re-classified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
The defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation less the Fair Value of Plan Assets out of which
the obligations are expected to be settled.

il nsated Absen

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken
to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the leave as a current liabllity in the Balance Sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Short Term Emplovee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits includes short term compensated absences which is recognised based on the eligible leave at credit on the Balance Sheet date and the
estimated cost is based on the terms of the employment contract.

1 ri

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’} relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020,
The Code has published in the Gazette of India. However, the date of which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the
Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Z, which is also the Company'’s functional currency.

itial

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction or at the average rates that
closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical
cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

T men' ifferen

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially|
recorded during the year or reported in previous financial statements are recognised as income or as expense in the year in which they arise.

Forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of an existing Asset/Liability
The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such
contracts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward
exchange contract is recognised as income or as expense for the year.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year, The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events of bonus issue.Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the profit / loss after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or
income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted
average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive anly
if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted
as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credit availed, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and|
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade|
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Other Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its book value, only if it increases the future benefits from the existing Property,
Plant and Equipment beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing Property, Plant and Equipment, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of Property,Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the Property,Plant and Equipment separately, if the component/part has a cost which is significant to
the total cost of the Property,Plant and Equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining Property,Plant and Equipment.

Capital Work-in-Progress: Projects under which Property,Plant and Equipment is not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost and attributable interest. Once it has becomes available for use, their cost is re-classified to appropriate caption and subjected to depreciation.




Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the Period ended 31 March 2025

i. Depreciation and amortisation:

Depreciation is provided using the straight line method as per the useful lives of the assets estimated by the Management as follows:

Building 30 years

Plant and Machinery 5 years / 8 years
Office Equipment 5 years

Electrical Equipment 10 years
Computers 3 years

Furniture and Fittings 10 years

Vehicles (Motor cars/Motor Vehicles) 8 years / 10 years

j. Useful lives/depreciation rates

Considering the applicability of Schedule II, the Management has estimated the useful lives and residual values of all its Property, Plant and Machinery.The Management,
believes that the depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful life and residual values of Property, Plant and Machinery, though these rates in
certain cases are different from the lives prescribed under schedule II.

The Management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by professionals, the useful lives of the following classes of Property,Plant and Equipment.

Leasehold improvements are amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives or the remainder of primary lease period, whichever is lower.

Other Intanglble assets are amortised using the straight-line method over a period of five years.

k. Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible assets

The carrying amounts of Property, Plant and Equipment is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date (if there is any indication of impairment based on internal / external factors.
An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an Property, Plant and Equipment exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the areater
of the assets net selling price and value In use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the Property, Plant and Equipment. After impairment, depreciation s provided on
the revised carrying amount of the Property, Plant and Equipment over its remaining useful life.

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

m. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or
contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if|
that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases where, the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

" Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating
leases are included in fixed assets, Lease income on an operating lease is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs,
including depreciation, are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

n. Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as @ result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to|
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liabllity that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably The|
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

0. Provision for Warranty
The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold. These estimates are established using historical information on the nature, frequency and
average cost of warranty claims and Management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions on product failures, The timing of outflows will
vary as and when warranty claims will arise, being typically up to twenty five years.

The estimates used for accounting of warranty liability/recoveries are reviewed periodically and revisions are made as required.

Financial instruments:

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are|
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

L

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
¢ Financial assets at fair value

« Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or|
recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income). oo

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment) unless the asset is de
P~5 QITRLOfit or loss under the fair value option.




Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the Period ended 31 March 2025

® Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument
prior to its contractual maturity to realise its fair value changes).

e Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the asset is designated at fair value through
profit or loss under the fair value option.

® Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

e Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortised cost or. fair value through other comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair
value through profit or loss If doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an 'accounting mismatch')
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Ali equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for those equity investments|
for which the entity has elected to present value changes in 'other comprehensive income'.

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial recognition to measure it at fair value through other comprehensive income with anly
dividend income recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's
statement of financial position) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the Property,Plant and Equipment has expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the Property,Plant and Equipment or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement and either;

(a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially ali the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Company continues te recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:
e Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

» Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
« the 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date); or

* Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument).

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
» Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

¢ All lease receivables

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically gbserved
defauit rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since Initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument tmproves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-months ECL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of
facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
» Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
¢ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
vatue through profit or loss.
* Financlal liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

- Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
= Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind
AS 109 are satisfied.
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r.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost uslng the EIR method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is|
included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liabllity is replaced by another from

the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Sffsetting of financial i )

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet If there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures specific financial instruments of certain investments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best|
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on|
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or|
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note summarizes the accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
relevant notes.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise Cash at Banks and on hand including cheques on hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of|
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash, when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate
laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Dividends paid/payable are recognised in the year in which the related dividends are approved by the Shareholders or Board of Directors as appropriate,

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrais or accruals of past
or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company is segregated based on the available information.

Exceptional items

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the
understanding of the performance of the Company, such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the
financial statements,

Segment Reporting

Operating segments reflect the Company's Management structure and the way the financial information is regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Executive Officer (CEQ).
The CEO considers the business from both business and product perspective based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and
Management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit / loss amounts are
evaluated regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and
segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under
unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities.
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Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the Period ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4(a)(i) Right-of-use assets
The following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended
Particulars Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023
Additions 131.35
Deletions =
Depreciation* 4.74
As at 31 March 2024 126.61
Additions
Deletions 19.31
Depreciation* 4.02
As at 31 March 2025 103.28

*The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense

(ii) Lease Liabiliti
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during year ended
Particulars Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023
Additions 131.35
Finance Cost accrued during the year 11.27
Deletions -
Payment of Lease liabilities 10.60
As at 31 March 2024 132.02
Additions -
Finance Cost accrued during the year 9.46
Deletions 21.75
Payment of Lease liabilities 10.60
As at 31 March 2025 109.13
The following is the break-up of current and non current liabilities as on
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Current lease liabilities 1.24 10.60
Non Current lease liabilities 107.89 121.42
(iii) Amounts re i in Profit and L llows
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Depreciation Expenditure 4.02 4.74
Finance cost on Lease liabilities 9.46 11.27

(iv) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2025 on an undiscounted
basis :
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Not later than 1 year 10.60 10.60
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 42.40 42.40
Later than 5 years 218.20 228.80




5

Other Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software Total
As at 1 April 2023 - =
Additions 4.09 4.09
Deletions = =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4.09 4.09
Additions 64.22 64.22
Deletions - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 68.30 68.30
Amortisation

As at 1 April 2023 - -
Charge for the year 0.82 0.82
Deletions = =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.82 0.82
Charge for the year 4.55 4.55
Deletions - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 5.37 5.37
Carrying amount

Balance as at 1 April 2023 = =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3.27 3.27
Balance as at 31 March 2025 62.93 62.93
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6

7(i)

Unquoted non-current investments

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

98200 Shares of Swelect Clean Energy Systems Private Limited at Rs.10

per share (As on March 31, 2024 : 180000 shares) 9.82 18.00
50310 Shares of SWELECT Re Power Private imited at Rs.10 per share

(As on March 31, 2024 : Nil) 50.31 -
950 Shares of Yajur Energy Private Limited at Rs.11 per share (As on

March 31, 2024 : 950 shares) 0.10 0.10
Total 60.23 18.10
Aggregate value of unquoted non-current investments 60.23 18.10

Other financial assets (Unsecured, considered good, unless

otherwise stated) carried at amortised cost

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

(i) Non-Current

Security Deposits 80.91 23.57
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity 740.76 2
Total 821.67 23.57
(ii) Current

Security deposits 1.00 -
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 77.62 17.40
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity 900.11 1,672.09
Total 978.73 1,689.49

Financial assets carried at Amortised cost

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

(i) Current

Loans to employees 1.96 0.09
Other Financial Assets = =
Total 1.96 0.09
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Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Other Non-current assets (Unsecured, considered good)

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024
Capital advances - 62.84

Prepaid expenses 76.63 88.76

Total 76.63 151.60
Inventories

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024
Raw materials and components 6,887.49 2,233.41

Raw materlals in transit 2,070.44 780.69

Work-in-progress 116.07 316.23

Finished goods 2,676.07 3,751.03

Traded goods 19.11 19.11

Total 11,769.18 7,100.47
Note:

Work-in Progress comprises of Solar Photo Voltaic Panels, mechanical and electrical items.

Inventories have been pledged as collateral securities with Banks for availing working capital limits for the Company (Refer Note 15)

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year Rs. 25,279.32 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2024: Rs.15,807.55 Lakhs)
The cost of inventories recognised is net of write down of inventory to the extent of Rs. 565.76 lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2024: Rs. 10.43 lakhs )

Trade Receivables

Particulars
j—arrcuiar

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

(a) Considered good - unsecured 1,642.37 194.68
(b) Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
(c) Trade receivables - credit impaired = »
1,642.37 194.68
Less: Loss allowance = =
Total 1,642.37 194.68
Outstanding as on 31 March 2025
Particulal
articulars Lesslthanis 6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 1,642.05 0.26 0.06 - - 1,642.37
(if) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have . . . _ - .
significant increase in credit risk
| imi undls_guted Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - =
5] fing as on 31 March 2024
icul
Particulars Lessthan & 6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 194.68 - - - - 194.68
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have - . . ~ - -
significant increase in credit risk
(ilf) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - N -

|Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

| Outstanding as on 31 March 2025 |

Outstanding as on 31 March 2024 |

|Allowance for Expected Credit Loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Balances with Banks:
On current accounts

Cash on hand

Total

2.49 51.31
Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 153.70 -
0.54 0.39
156.73

51.70

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025| As at 31 March 2024
Balances with Banks:
On current accounts 2.49 51.31
Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 153.70 -
Cash on hand 0.54 0.39
156.73 51.70
Less : Bank overdrafts (Refer Note 15 (ii)) (5,030.10) (2,114.19)
Total (4,873.37) (2,062.49)

Other Current assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2025] As at 31 March 2024
1] ed and idered good:

Supplier advances 686.08 136.51

Balances with Government authorities 531.32 916.35

Prepaid expenses 119.21 1.34

Total 1,336.61 1,054.20
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Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14 Other Equity

15

16

Other Equity movement during the year 2024-25:-

Particulars Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 01 April 2023 (190.31) {(190.31)
Profit for the year (545.72) (545.72)
Other Comprehensive income (2.13) (2.13)
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2024 (738.16) (738.16)
Profit for the year 583.98 583.98

Other Comprehensive income (2.50) (2.50)
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2025 (156.68) (156.68)

Borrowings

Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

(a) Non-Current

Term loan from Banks 2,476.57 3,574.38
0.01% of Non Cumulative, Non -
Convertible, Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid 4,098.13 -
Loan from Related Party - 5,283.11
Total Non-Current Borrawings 6,574.70 B8,857.49
Secured loans 2,476.57 3,574.38
Unsecured loans 4,098.13 5,283.11
Details of borrowings are given below:
Effective
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024 | Interest |Currency |Repayment Terms Security
Rate
Loan obligation plus Land, Building, Plant and
o, interest, is payable in 39 |Machinery, Stock and
Term loan 1 3,581.86 4,679.67 8.55%| INR equal monthly Receivables, Third party
linstalments. fixed deposits
Preference shares will be
0.01% of Non Cumulative, Non - redeemed at the end of
Convertible, Redeemable Preference 4,098.13 - 8.27%| INR 10th year at a premium, |Unsecured
Shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid yielding an Internal Rate
of Return (IRR) of 8.27%.
Sub Total 7,679.99 4,679.67
Less: Current Portion 1,105.29 1,105.29
Non-Current Borrowings 6,574.70 3,574.38
(ii) Current (Secured) As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Bank overdrafts 5,030.10 2,114.19
Current maturities of long-term debt 1,105.29 1,105.29
Total Current Borrowings 6,135.39 3,219.48
Details of borrowings are given below:
Effective
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024 | Interest |Currency |Repayment Terms Security
Rate
Bank overdraft 5,030.10 2,114.19 8.50% INR |Repayable on demand Current Assets
Total Short Term Borrowings 5,030.10 2,114.19

Trade payables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Trade payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 147.35 36.69
(Refer note below regarding dues to micro, small and medium enterprises)

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

- to others 2,182.57 1,064.15
- to related parties (Refer Note 33) 9,209.18 7,433.12
Total 11,539.10 8,533.96
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Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025

Particulars A ding for following p from due date of payment

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
(i) Micro, Small and medium enterprises =
(MSME) 147.35 - 147.35
{ii) Others 11,222.84 75.78 93.12 11,391.75
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others 3 = )
Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024
Particulars for g periods from due date of payment

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
(i) Micro, Small and medium enterprises .
(MSME) 36.69 36.69
(i) Others 5,339.12 3,157.02 1414 8,497.27
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - -

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases. The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 30 days to 90 days .The Group has financial risk management policies in place

1o ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each financial year

g As at As at
]
PAFEicaIars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each financlal year 145.24 36.69
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each financial year 2.11 =
(iii) Amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment .
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each financial year;
(iv) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED - -
Act, 2006);
2.11 -

as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act 2006,

(vi) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance

17 _ Other Fi Liabilities
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
(i) Current
Interest accrued 41.24 48.61
Capital creditors - 418.60
Total 41.24 467.21
18 Provisions
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
i) Non- current
Provision for warranties (Refer Note below) 42,20 17.48
Provision for gratuity 4.12 1.81
Provision for compensated absences 7.38 16.07
Total 53.70 35.36
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
(ii) Current

Provision for warranties (Refer Note below)
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences

Total

Total Provisions [{i)+(ii)]

53.70

35.36

P B e il

Provision for warranties

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Qpening Balance 17.48 -

Additional provision recognised 86.62 46.65
Utilisation of provision 61.90 29.17
Closing Balance 42.20 17.48

19  Other current liabilities
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Current
Advance from customers 2,742.54 385.77
Statutory dues payable 17.96 18.02
Total 2,760.50 403.79




Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

20 (a) Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 |As at 31 March 2024
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 207.83 -
Gross deferred tax liabilities 207.83 -
Deferred tax assets
Carry forward business loss and unabsorbed depreciation (196.89) ¥
Right of Use Asset (Net) (1.01) -
Provision for employee benefits (1.97) -
Provision for warranties (7.24) -
Fair valuation adjustments - Financial Liabilities (16.35) -
Gross deferred tax assets (223.46) -
Total Deferred tax assets (net) (15.63) =

(b) Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are:

S of Profit or Loss:

As at 31 March 2025

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge(Refer Note below)

As at 31 March 2024

Deferred tax:
Relating to erigination and reversal of temporary differences {15.63) =
Total (15.63) =

timing difference pertaining to certain tax benefits as per latest amended Incomet Tax Act, 1961,

Reconciliation of tax and the ing profit ied by India‘s domestic tax rate

income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows :

As at March 31, 2025, the Company has recognised deferred tax asset of Rs. 15.63 Lakhs net of deferred tax laibility due to enacted changes in the applicable tax rates on

The major components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at 17.16%. The Company|
opted for new tax scheme u/s 115BAB. A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit /(loss) before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised

unabsorbed losses.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Profit before tax 568.35 -
Enacted income tax rate in India 17.16%

Computed exp tax exp 97.53 -
Income subject to different tax rate - -
Impact of change in tax benefits - -
Set off against brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation (97.53) -
Others adjustmeants (15.63) -

I tax exp reported in the of Profit and Loss (15.63) -

Note:

The Company has opted the provisions of section 115BAB as per Income Tax Act 1961 as amended. Consequently the tax calculation as per normal provisions is Nil due to|

tax r ised in other compr ive i (ocr)
Particular As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan lability (Net) (2.50) (2.13)
Tax (expense) / benefit - -
Nit of tax {2.50) (2.13)

(c) Income Tax Asset

income tax.

Income tax asset of Rs. 32.12 lakhs as at 31 March 2025 (As at 31 March 2024 Rs. 27.73 lakhs) represents the tax deducted at source/advance tax, net of provision for
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21

22

23

23A

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Revenue from operations
i) Sale of products
Manufactured goods

Solar Photovoltaic Panels 30,694.28 19,237.41
Traded Goods 250.44 ]
ii) Sale of services - 3.75
iii) Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 33.13 25.34
Revenue from operations 30,977.85 19,266.50

Other income

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost 109.92 98.97
Other non-operating income 94.16 0.58
Total 204.08 99.55

Cost of Raw Material and Components Consumed

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Inventories at the beginning of the year 3,014.10 5,596.34
Add: Purchases 29,709.52 17,138.13

32,723.62 22,734.47
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 8,957.93 3,014.10
Total 23,765.69 19,720.37

Purchase of Traded goods

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Purchase of Traded goods 238.51 -
Total 238.51 -
24 Decrease / (Increase) in inventories of Work-In-Progress, Traded Goods and Finished Goods
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024

Inventories at the end of the year

Traded goods 19.11 19.11

Work-in-progress 116.07 316.23

Finished goods 2,676.07 3,751.03

Total 2,811.25 4,086.37
N For the year ended |For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2025 March 2024

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Traded goods 19.11 33.11

Work-in-progress 316.23 132.32

Finished goods 3,751.03 8.12

Total 4,086.37 173.55

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories 1,275.12 (3,912.82)




Swelect HHV Solar Photovoltaics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

21 Revenue from operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Flanticuiars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(a) Sale of products (Refer Note 21.1 (i) below) 30,944.72 19,237.41
(b) Sale of services (Refer Note 21.1 (ii) below) - 3.75
(c) Other operating revenue (Refer Note 21.1 (ili) below) 33.13 25.34
Total 30,977.85 19,266.50

21.1 Disaggregation of the revenue information

The tables below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2025 by
\( offerings. The Group believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

(i) sale of Products comprises the following:-

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Manufactured goods

Solar Photovoltaic Panels

30,694.28

19,237.41

Total

30,694.28

19,237.41

(ii) Sale of Services comprises the following:-

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Others - 3.75
Total = 3.75

(iii) Other operating revenue comprises the following:-

For the year ended

For the year ended

P SIS 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Scrap Sales 33.13 25.34
Total 33.13 3534

No other single customers contributed 10% or more to the Company’s revenue during the finanical years 2024-25 other
than Swelect Energy Systems Limited (27.42%) (FY 2023-24 - Swelect Energy Systems Limited (74.93%), Panasonic

Life Solutions India Pvt (16.56%) and Inglo (10.48%).

Revenue by Geography (Revenue from Operations)

. For the year ended | For the year ended
Farticulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
India 30,977.85 19,266.50
Qutside India p
Total 30,977.85 19,266.50

21.2 Trade Receivables and Contract Balances

21.3

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as receivable. A receivable is a right to
consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time, Revenue is recognised as and when the related goods are
delivered to the customer. Trade receivable are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet. Contract liabilities
include payments received in advance of performance under the contract, and are realised with the associated revenue
recognised under the contract.

Performance Obligations and remaining performance

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be
recognised as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise there
amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS-115, the company has not disclosed information
about the remaining performance obligations in contracts where the original contract duration is one year or less or
where the entity has the right to consideration that corresponds directly with the value of entity's performance completed
to date.
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25 Employee benefits expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 304.86 262.38
Contribution to provident and other funds 13.72 13.22
Gratuity expense (Refer note 30B) 5.85 3.91
Staff welfare expenses 73.76 30.75
Total 398.19 310.26
26 Finance Costs
. For the year ended For the year ended
SaEESHIete 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on borrowings 1,016.62 1,005.63
Interest on Lease Liability 9.46 11.27
Interest on MSME 2.11 -
Other borrowing cost 150.12 146.09
Total 1,178.31 1,162.99
27 Depreciation and amortisation exp
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer note 4) 944.26 1,276.07
Amortisation of other Intangible assets (Refer note 5) 4.55 0.82
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer note 4A(iii)) 4.02 4.74
Total 952,83 1,281.63
28 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sub-contracting and processing expenses 950.34 471.45
Consumption of stores and spares 57.91 2.48
Power and fuel 560.74 379.94
Freight and forwarding charges 221.99 33.81
Rent 2.35 1.88
Rates and taxes 38.45 24.56
Insurance 41.19 11.35
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant & Machinery 36.22 11.24
- Buildings 41.52 4.61
- Others 101.33 50.27
Sales promotion 83.65 24.58
Advertisement 4.58 3.58
Security charges 47.83 47.78
Travelling and conveyance 59.27 49.18
Communication costs 6.00 5.18
Printing and stationery 8.08 5.96
Exchange differences (net) 159.56 121.29
Legal and professional fees 313.87 63.08
Payment to auditor (Refer note 28(i)) 11.99 0.09
Provision for warranties (net of reversals)(Refer Note 18) 24.72 17.48
Miscellaneous expenses 33.34 19.55
Total 2,804.93 1,349.34
For the year ended| For the year ended
28(i) |Payment to auditor 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Audit fee 12.00 0.10
Total 12.00 0.10
29 Earnings price per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the Group (A) 583.98 (545.72)
weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes ot basic and diluted EVS (B) * 1U,000.0V 1U,U00.0U
Basic Earnings per share (A/B) 5,839.76 (5,457.20)
Diluted Earnings per share (A/B) 5,839.76 (5,457.20)
* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in equity share transactions during the
year. There have been no other transactions involving Equity. shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of
s > authorisation of these financial statements. j= =i
>33
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30A

30B

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Scheme is funded with an Insurance Company in

the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds

13.72

'13.22

Defined Benefits Plan - Gratuity plan

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Scheme is funded with an Insurance Company in

the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation

Defined Benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 9.89 3.54
Current Service Cost 5.76 3.66
Interest Cost 0.69 0.26
Actuarial loss 2.53

Benefits paid (5.01) 2.43
Defined Benefit obligation as at the end of the year 13.86 9.89

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 8.09 -
Expected return on plan assets 0.60 -
Actuarial gain / loss 0.03 0.31
Employer's contribution 6.03 7.78
Benefits paid (5.01) -
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 9.74 8.09

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of obligation

Net Obligation disclosed as:

- Current

- Non - Current

9.74
13.86

4.12

8.09
9.89

1.81

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Recognised in profit or loss:

Current Service Cost 5.76 3.66
Interest Cost 0.09 0.26
Expected return on plan assets =] =
Recognised in other comprehensive income:

Actuarial loss / (gain) 2.50 2.13
Net Cost 8.35 6.05
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31 The major categorles of plan assets of the falr value of the total plan assets are as follows:

Gratulty plan

For the year ended

For the year ended

Farticulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Investments detalls:
Fund with LIC 9.74 8.09
Total 9.74 8.09
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Discount rate: 6.75% 7.45%
Future salary increases: 9.50% 7.50%
Contribution Expected to be paid during the next year 1 1
Cmﬂ;ﬂ%_
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Discount rate 6.75% 7.45%
Future salary Increases 9.50% 7.50%
Employee turnover . 8% 8%
Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
Mortality Rate! (% of TALM 2012 - 2014) | (% of IAML 2012 - 2014)

! Based on India‘s standard mortality table with modification to reflect the expected changes in mortality / others.

A quantitative sensitivity ysis for ant ions as at 31 March 2025 is as shown below:

Gratuity plan:

For the year ended 31 March 2025
Assumptions - Sensitlvity Level Sensitivity Level Impact on defIned benefit obli ion
1% increase 1% decrease Amount A
Discount rate: 7.75% 5.75% 14,93 14.66
Future salary increases: 10.50% 8.50% 15.32 15.04
For the year ended 31 March 2024
Assumptions - Sensitivity Level Sensitivity Level | Impact on benefit gation
1% increase 1% decrease Amount Amount
Discount rate: 8.45% 6.45%| 10.73 10.53
Future salary increases: 8.50%] 6.50%)| 10.73 10.53

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonabie changes in

key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 11.57 years (March 31, 2024:11.57 years )

32 Commitments

Particulars As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

(i) Bank guarantees issued to various parties 226.20
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33 Related party transactions

Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiaries

Swelect Energy Systems Limited
Swelect Energy Systems Pte. Limited, Singapore

SWELECT Inc, USA

Noel Media & Advertising Private Limited

Swelect Green Energy Solutions Private Limited

Swelect Power Systems Private Limited

Swelect Sun Energy Private Limited

Swelect Renewable Energy Private Limited

Swelect RE Power Private Limited

Swelect Taiyo Energy Private Limited

Swelect Clean Energy Private Limited

ESG Solar Private Limited

Swelect Sustainable Private Limited

ESG Green Private Limited

Swelect Radiant Power Private Limited (w.e.f. 19 March 2025)

Swelect GP Private Limited (w.e.f. 20 March 2025)

Swelect Solarkraft Private Limited (w.e.f. 20 March 2025)

Swelect Sunpower Plus Private Limited (w.e.f. 20 March 2025)

Amex Alloys Private Limited (tili 18 March 2024)
Joint Venture of Swelect Energy Systems Pte. AV SW Green Energies PTE Limited
Limited, Singapore

Ms. V. C. Mirunalini - Whole Time Director
Mr. A, Balan - Director

Mr. R. Chellappan - Director

Mr. G. S. Samuel - Director

Mrs. Indira Sukumar - CFO

Key Management Personnel

Particulars Total
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
well r

Purchase of goods 14,547.92 9,918.20 14,547.92 9,918.20
Balance outstanding as at the vear end:
Trade payables 9,209.18 7,007.80 9,209.18 7,007.80
Swelect Energy Systems Limited
Purchase of Power 38.15 21.33 38.15 21.33
Purchase of goods 65.65 24.52 65.65 24,52
Sale of goods 8,552.50 14,441.37 8,552.50 14,441.37
Rental expenditure 11.89 11.45 11.89 11.45
Interest on unsecured loan 445.23 580.16 445.23 580.16
Commission charges 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Management fees - expense 4.56 4.56 4,56 4.56
Advance borrowed 2,308.64 9,012.65 2,308.64 9,012.65
Advance repaid 7,591.74 9,980.49 7,591.74 9,980.49
Preference share capital 4,098.13 - 4,098.13 -
Purchase of Non - current investments 50.31 - 50.31 =
Balance outstanding as at the year end:
Advance Received 890.39 - 890.39 | ° =
Trade payables - 395.44 - 395.44
Unsecured loan 0.00 5,283.11 0.00 5,283.11
Sale of goods or materials - 8.00 - 8.00
MEIS License purchase - 34.91 - 34,91
Purchase of Power - 24.00 - 24,00
Balance outstanding as at the year end:
Trade payables - 24.00 - 24.00
Swelect Clean energy Pvt Itd
Purchase of Power 107.10 0.06 107.10 0.06
Balance outstanding as at the year end:
Trade payables - 5.87 - 5.87
Swelect RE-Power Pvt itd
Sale of Power 59.63 - 59.63 -
Wheeling charges 13.67 - 13.67 =
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Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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36 (A)

36(B)

The Company has incurred a net profit of Rs. 583.56 Lakhs during the year and the negative net worth of the Company is reversing as at 31 March 2025. As at 31 March 2025, Current
liabilities exceeds current assets by Rs. 4,591.89 Lakhs as at 31 March 2025 (By Rs. 2,545.19 Lakhs as at 31 Mach 2024). Swelect Energy Systems Limited, the ultimate holding
company will provide financial support to the extent needed by the Company to meet its current and future obligations as and when they fall due. Taking into consideration of the
funding arrangement from the holding company, the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Critical accounting est and ption

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires Management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expanses,
assets, liabilities, accompanying disclosures, and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, Management has not made any significant judgements as the company has just started its operations.

Est and ions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Significant Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Warranties

Provision for warranties involves a significant amount of estimation. The provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The best estimate is determined based on the Company’s past experience of warranty claims and future expectations, These estimates are revised periodically.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment compensated absences and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are given in Note 31.

Contingent liabllities and Commitments:

(a) Contingencles
The details of claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts are given below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
a) Income tax related matters 13,704.95 =
Total 13,704.95 .

The amount shown under Contingent Liabilities and disputed claims represent the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. Further, various
Government authorities raise issues/clarifications in the normal course of business and the Company has provided its responses to the same and no formal demands/claims
has been made by the authorities in respect of the same other than those pending before various judicial/regulatory forums as disclosed above. The uncertainties and
possible reimbursement in respect of the above are dependent on the outcome of the various legal proceedings, which have been initiated by the Company or the
Claimants, as the case may be and therefore cannot be predicted accurately. The Company has reviewed all the proceedings and has adequately provided for wherever
provisions are required and disclosed contingent liabilities wherever applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings
to have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.
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Fi ial Risk Objecti & Policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of short and long tenured borrowings, trade and other payables. Most of these liabilities relate to financing Company’s working capital
cycle. The Company has trade and other receivables, loans and advances that arise directly from its operations.

The Company is accordingly exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's senior management oversees management of these risks, The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks for the Company are accountable to the Board of
Directors. This process provides assurance that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,

measured and managed in accordance with Company’s policies and overall risk appetite. In addition, independent views from bankers and currency market experts are obtained periodically
to validate risk mitigation decisions.

The Management reviews and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below:
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise interest rate risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rate movement.

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rate borrowings 12,710.09 12,076.97
Total 12,710.09 12,076.97

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the
Company'’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/ decrease| Effect on Profit
Particulars in basis points before tax.
As at 31 March 2025 +100 basis points (127.10)
-100 basis points 127.10
As at 31 March 2024
+100 basis points (120.77)|
-100 basis points 120.77

ii) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company transacts business
in local currency and in foreign currency, primarily US Dollars. The Company has foreign currency trade payables and receivables and is therefore, exposed to foreign currency risk.

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by way of a periodical assessment for hedging appropriate percentage of its foreign currency exposure, as per its established risk
Management policy duly considering the nature of the foreign currency receivable/payables, the fluctuation in the foreign currencies etc,

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

The Company has a currency swap contract for its external commercial borrowings as at 31 March 2025 and all of its other foreign currency exposure is unhedged. The following table
demonstrates the sensitivity in the USD and other currencies to the functional currency of the Company, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's Profit before tax
is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including foreign currency derivatives.

exchange rate

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

. Effect on profit before tax Effect on equity
Change in hﬁ‘
Earticulars gurrancy For the year ended | For the year ended| For the year ended | For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

US Dollars

+5%
-5%

458.44
(458.44)

7,466.68
(7,466.68)

458.44
(458.44)

7,466.68
(7,466.68)

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities, primarily trade receivables and from its financing activities, including deposits with Banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.
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i) Trade and other receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company's established policy, procedures and controls relating to cu credit risk mar . Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and
are generally on credit terms in line with respective industry norms. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the
customer base is widely distributed both economically and geographically.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as foliows:

Past due but not impaired

Meither past due
Particulars nor impaired Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Trade Recelvables as of 31 March 2025 1,642.05 0.26 0.06 1,642.37
Trade Receivables as of 31 March 2024 194.68 = 194.68

The requirement for impairment is analysed at each reporting date and provision is based on the Expected Credit Loss Method.

Cash and bank balances

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks at the reporting dates. The credit worthiness of such banks are | d by the V on an on going basis
and is considered to be good.
Other fi ial assets i
The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by the counter-parties.

ii) Fi ial instr and cash dep

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by Company's treasury in accordance with the Board approved policy.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without Incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to,
at all times maintain optimum lavels of liquidity to meet it cash and coll; q The C closely Itors its liquidity p ind deploys a robust cash management
system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans, debt, and from hoth d icand ional Banks at an oplimised cost.
The table below summarise the maturity profile of the Company'’s financial llabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:
Particulars 31 March 2025

Less than 1 year 1- 5 years More than 5 years Total Carrying Value
Borrowings 6,135.39 2,476.57 4,098.13 12,710.09 12,710.09
Trade Payables 11,539.10 - - 11,539.10 11,539.10
Lease liability 10.60 42.40 218.20 271.20 109.13
Other financial liabilities 41,24 - - 41.24 41.24
Total 17,726.33 2,518.97 4,316.33 24,561.63 24,399,56
Particulars 31 March 2024

Less than 1 year 1- 5 years More than 5 years Total Carrying Value
Borrowings 3,219.48 8,857.49 = 12,076.97 12,076.97
Trade Payables 8,533.96 - - 8,533.96 8,533.96 |
Lease liability 0.60 42.40 228.80 281.80 132.02
Other financial llabilities 467.21 - = 467.21 467.21
Total 12,231.25 8,899.89 228.80 21,359.94 21,210.16

B. Capital Management

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and net debt. Primary objective of Company’s capltal management is to ensure that it maintains an optimum
financing structure and healthy returns in order to support its business and maximize sharsholder value. The C ges Its capital structure and makes adjustments, in light of the
changes in ecanomic conditions or business requirements. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, Net debt is calculated
as loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents,

Gearing Ratio:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Borrowings 12,710.09] 12,076.97|
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,056.84 1,723.79
Net Debt 11,653.25 10,353.18|
| Equity (155.68 (737.16)
Total Capital (155.68 {737.16)
Gearing Ratio (74.85 (14.04)
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39 Segment Information

The Company’s operations relate to only one business segment, viz., manufacture of solar module. Accordingly, this is the only reportable business segment.

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Revenue from Operations

India 30,977.85 19,266.50

Others = *

Total 30,977.85 19,266.50

Non-Current Assets

(Excluding Financlal Assets

& Deferred tax asset)

India 10,242.85 10,752.90

Others i o

Total 10,242.85[ 10,752.90

40 The following ratios are disclosed:

Ratlos Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | Varlance (%) |Reasons

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.78 0.80] -3% =

{b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity (82.34) (16.56) 397.18%|The variance is due to the
reduction In negative net worth
from the previous year to the
current year.

(c) Debt Service Coverage Profit Before Tax + Dep & Interest Expense + Principal 1.09| 0.79 37.75%| The varlance is due to an increase

Ratio, Amort. + Finance costs - Repayments for long term in profit before tax, compared to a

Other Income loans loss in the previous year.

(d) Return on Equity Ratio Profit after Tax Shareholder’s Equity -375% 74.03% -606.70%|The varlance is due to an increase
in profit after tax, compared to a
loss in the previous year.

(e) Inventory turnover ratio Cost of Goods Sald Average Inventories of 2.68] 2.46 9.07%

FInished Goods, Work-in- .
Progress and Stock-in-Trade

(f) Trade Receivables turnover |Value of Sales & Services Average Trade Receivables 33.73 182.92| -81.56%]|The variance in the trade

ratio receivables ratio is due to
improved management of
receivable days and enhanced
collection efficiency.

(9) Trade payables turnover  [Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables 2.80) 2.79 0.29%

ratio -

(h) Net capital turnover ratio |Total Income Working Capital (Current (6.79) (7.57) -10.29%

Assets - Current Liabilities af
(i) Net profit ratio Profit After Tax (after Total Income 1.89% -2.83% -166.55%|The variance is due to an increase
exceptional items) in profit after tax, compared to a
loss in the previous year.
(j) Return on Capital employed |Earnings before interest and |Total Equity +Total 0.14 0.05 157.54%| The variance is due to an increase
taxes Borrowings-Other Intangible in EBIT compared to the previous
Assets year,

(k) Return on investment Other Equity Equity Share Capital (156.68) (738.16) -78.77%|The variance is due to a reduction
in negative net worth from the
previous year to the current year,
driven by the profit earned during
the year.

() Interest Coverage ratio Earnings before interest and | Interest Expense 1.48 0.53 179.29%)| The variance is due to an increase

taxes in EBIT compared to the previous
year,

(m) Operating Profit Margin Earnings before interest and | Operational revenue 0.06. 0.03 75.99%| The variance is due to an increase

taxes in EBIT compared to the previous
year.
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Additional Information:

(a) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(b) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(c) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shali:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(d) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)

that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries.

(e) The Company does not have any such trensaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(F) To the best of its knowledge, The Company has not had any transaction with any struck-off companies.

(g) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period as at the year ended 31 March 2025,

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended 31 March 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

42 Further, there was no instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with, and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.
43 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary.
a4 The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 29 May 2025.
and on behalf of the Board of Directors
alect HHV Solar Phot: ics Private Limited
w
R.Chellappan A.Balan
Director Director
DIN:00016958 DIN:00017091
Place: Chennai di
Date: 29 May 2025 Cpief Fipéncial Officer
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